
         

 

 

TERRACINA 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

PALM BEACH COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 9, 2024 
9:00 A.M. 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.terracinacdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 

 

AGENDA 
TERRACINA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT  

Meeting Room of the Nexus at Vista Park 
2101 Vista Parkway 

West Palm Beach, Florida 33411 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

September 9, 2024 
9:00 a.m. 

 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………...Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

E. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

F. Approval of Minutes  

1. May 13, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes…………………………………………….Page 2 

G. Old Business 

H. New Business 

1. Discussion Regarding Allstate’s Rate Increase……………………………………………..Page 5 

2. Consider Resolution No. 2024-04 – Adopting Goals and Objectives………………………Page 6 

I. Administrative Matters 

1. Financial Report……………………………………………………………………………..Page 9 

J. Board Members Comments 

K. Adjourn 

 

 



Page 1



 

Page 1 of 3 
 

TERRACINA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
PUBLIC HEARING & REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MAY 13, 2024 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The May 13, 2024, Regular Board Meeting of the Terracina Community Development District (the 
“District”) was called to order at 9:05 a.m. in a Meeting Room of the Nexus at Vista Park located at 
2101 Vista Parkway, West Palm Beach, Florida 33411. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented indicating that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been 
published in the Palm Beach Post on September 29, 2023, as part of the District’s Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 Regular Meeting Schedule, as legally required.  
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM  
 
Present and constituting a quorum were Chairman Guy Colella and Supervisors Sheik Ameer and 
Linda Colella and all was in order to proceed with the meeting. 
 
Staff present included District Manager Sylvia Bethel of Special District Services, Inc.; and District 
Counsel Frank Palen of Caldwell Pacetti Edwards Schoech & Viator LLP. 
 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
E. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  April 8, 2024, Regular Board Meeting 
 
The minutes of the April 8, 2024, Regular Board Meeting were presented and the Board was asked if 
there were any comments or questions. 
 
A motion was made by Mrs. Colella, seconded by Mr. Ameer and unanimously passed approving the 
minutes of the April 8, 2024, Regular Board Meeting, as presented. 
 
Ms. Bethel then recessed the Regular Board Meeting and opened the Public Hearing. 
 
G. PUBLIC HEARING 
 1.  Proof of Publication 
 
Proof of publication was presented indicating that notice of the Public Hearing had been published in 
the Palm Beach Post on April 23, 2024, and April 30, 2024, as legally required.  
 

Page 2



 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 2.  Receive Public Comment on Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Final Budget 
 
There was no public comment on the Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Final Budget. 
 
 3.  Consider Resolution No. 2024-02 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Final Budget 
 
Resolution No. 2024-02 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TERRACINA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT ADOPTING A FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025 BUDGET.  

 
Ms. Bethel explained that this was the budget previously approved a few meetings ago.  She asked to 
please review it and let her know if anyone has any questions. 
 
Mr. Colella gave his analysis to the Board.  Mr. Ameer inquired about the decrease of the Lake 
Aquatic Maintenance.  Ms. Bethel explained that line items are decreased to keep the assessments the 
same and normally a buffer is added for extra expenses.  
 
A motion was made by Mrs. Colella, seconded by Mr. Ameer and unanimously passed adopting 
Resolution No. 2024-02 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Final Budget, as presented. 
 
Ms. Bethel then closed the Public Hearing and reconvened the Regular Board Meeting. 
 
H. OLD BUSINESS 
 
There were no Old Business items to come before the Board. 
 
I. NEW BUSINESS 
 1.  Consider Resolution No. 2024-03 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Meeting 
Schedule 
 
Resolution No. 2024-03 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-03 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
TERRACINA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, ESTABLISHING 
A REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024/2025 AND 
SETTING THE TIME AND LOCATION OF SAID DISTRICT MEETINGS; 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Ms. Bethel directed the Board’s attention to the Meeting Schedule and pointed out the highlighted 
dates.  Ms. Bethel explained that these dates were the first Monday of the month instead of the second 
Monday due to a scheduling conflict. 
 
A motion was made by Mrs. Colella, seconded by Mr. Ameer and unanimously passed adopting 
Resolution No. 2024-03 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Meeting Schedule, as presented. 
 

Page 3



 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 2.  Review Fountain Spreadsheet 
 
Ms. Bethel advised of the Board’s request for revised warranty dates to show exact dates and she 
indicated that she was still working on this.  Mr. Roberts from Allstate has been extremely busy.  As 
soon as the information is available, she will update the spreadsheet and email it to the Board.  
 
J. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS  
 1.  Financial Report 
 
Ms. Bethel directed the Board’s attention to the financial report and requested that if anyone had 
questions, to please let her know. 
 
Pursuant to the Board’s request, Ms. Bethel advised that she had emailed the HOA about the sinkholes 
and they responded that it had been received.  Mr. Colella requested that Ms. Bethel send the letter to 
him for review. 
 
Ms. Bethel reminded the Board that Form 1 will now only be accepted electronically and it is due July 
1st.  
 
Ms. Bethel also advised that Special District Services was offering two  (2) free four-hour classes 
online for ethics training which must be completed by December 31, 2024. 
 
K. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
There were no further comments from the Board Members. 
  
L. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Mrs. Colella, 
seconded by Mr. Ameer adjourning the Regular Board Meeting at 9:22 a.m.  Upon being put to a vote, 
the motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

 

 

 

_________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary    Chair/Vice-Chair 
 

Page 4



Thank you to all our customers. We appreciate the opportunity to serve your 
communities and municipalities.  Many of you have been with us for over fifteen years. 

We understand budgets are tight and with the current climate of inflation they may get 
even tighter.  With this in mind we are only moving forward with a 3% increase for 
2025. Please do not hesitate to contact us with any questions or concerns. 

Page 5



RESOLUTION 2024-04 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
TERRACINA COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT ADOPTING 
GOALS, OBJECTIVES, AND PERFORMANCE MEASURES AND 
STANDARDS; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the Terracina Community Development District (the “District”) is a local 

unit of special-purpose government organized and existing under and pursuant to Chapters 189 
and 190, Florida Statutes, as amended; and 
 
 WHEREAS, effective July 1, 2024, the Florida Legislature adopted House Bill 7013, 
codified as Chapter 2024-136, Laws of Florida (“HB 7013”) and creating Section 189.0694, 
Florida Statutes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to HB 7013 and Section 189.0694, Florida Statutes, beginning 
October 1, 2024, the District shall establish goals and objectives for the District and create 
performance measures and standards to evaluate the District’s achievement of those goals and 
objectives; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District Manager has prepared the attached goals, objectives, and 
performance measures and standards and presented them to the Board of the District; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Supervisors (“Board”) finds that it is in the best 
interests of the District to adopt by resolution the attached goals, objectives and performance 
measures and standards. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE TERRACINA COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

  
 SECTION 1. The recitals so stated are true and correct and by this reference are 
incorporated into and form a material part of this Resolution. 
 

SECTION 2. The District Board of Supervisors hereby adopts the goals, objectives and 
performance measures and standards as provided in Exhibit A. The District Manager shall take 
all actions to comply with Section 189.0694, Florida Statutes, and shall prepare an annual report 
regarding the District’s success or failure in achieving the adopted goals and objectives for 
consideration by the Board of the District.  
 
 SECTION 3.  If any provision of this resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the other 
provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 SECTION 4. This resolution shall become effective upon its passage and shall remain in 
effect unless rescinded or repealed. 
 
 
 

Page 6



 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of September, 2024.  
 
 
ATTEST:     TERRACINA COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
             
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
 
 
Exhibit A: Performance Measures/Standards and Annual Reporting 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 7



Exhibit A 

Program/Activity:   District Administration 
Goal:    Remain compliant with Florida Law for all district meetings 
Objectives:    

 Notice all District regular, special, and public hearing meetings 
 Conduct all post-meeting activities  
 District records retained in compliance with Florida Sunshine Laws 

Performance Measures: 

 All Meetings publicly noticed as required (yes/no) 
 Meeting minutes and post-meeting action completed (yes/no) 
 District records retained as required by law (yes/no)     

Program/Activity:   District Finance 
Goal:    Remain Compliant with Florida Law for all district financing activities 
Objectives:     

 District adopted fiscal year budget 
 District amended budget at end of fiscal year 
 Process all District finance accounts receivable and payable 
 Support District annual financial audit activities 

Performance Measures: 

 District adopted fiscal year budget (yes/no) 
 District amended budget at end of fiscal year (yes/no) 
 District accounts receivable/payable processed for the year (yes/no) 
  “No findings” for annual financial audit (yes/no) 

o If “yes” explain 

Program/Activity:   District Operations 
Goal:    Insure, Operate and Maintain District owned Infrastructure & assets 
Objectives:     

 Annual renewal of District insurance policy(s) 
 Contracted Services for District operations in effect 
 Compliance with all required permits 

Performance Measures: 

 District insurance renewed and in force (yes/no) 
 Contracted Services in force for all District operations (yes/no) 
 Permits in compliance (yes/no) 

Page 8



Terracina
Community Development District

    Financial Report For
August 2024

Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17


	Terracina Community Developent District - September 9, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	May 13, 2024 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Discussion Regarding Allstate’s Rate Increase
	Consider Resolution No. 2024-04 – Adopting Goals and Objectives
	Financial Report




